
Date Published:29 April 2022     

Appointments Committee

Tuesday 10 May 2022 at 1.30 pm

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Sophie 
Benfield

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 2)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 11 March 2022.

Sophie 
Benfield

3  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

To answer any written public questions about matters which are within the
powers and duties of the Committee. The closing date/time for the receipt
of questions is 10.00am on Tuesday 3 May 2022.

Depending on the nature of the questions asked it may not be possible to
provide a comprehensive answer at the meeting, in which case a written
answer will be supplied as soon as reasonably possible after the meeting.

Sophie 
Benfield

4  MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 

To answer any written members’ questions. The closing date/time for the 
receipt of questions is 10.00am on Tuesday 3 May 2022.

Sophie 
Benfield

5  DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH (Pages 3 - 6) Mandy Quayle

Membership –  Cllr Rebecca Halifax, Cllr Tim Harman, Cllr Mark Hawthorne MBE, 
Cllr Paul Hodgkinson, Cllr David Norman MBE, Cllr Lynden Stowe and Cllr Wendy Thomas 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
(Rob Ayliffe Tel:01452 328506/ e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the 
start of the meeting.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Sophie Benfield, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324094/ e-mail: sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 81 of 

the Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE
MINUTES of a meeting of the Appointments Committee held on Friday 11 March 2022 at 
the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT:
Cllr Rebecca Halifax
Cllr Tim Harman
Cllr Mark Hawthorne MBE
Cllr Paul Hodgkinson

Cllr David Norman MBE
Cllr Lynden Stowe
Cllr Wendy Thomas

Officers in attendance: Nick Lerry, Mandy Quayle and Suzanne Salter

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

None received.

2. MINUTES 

The minutes were approved and signed as a true record.

3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

None received.

4. MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 

None received. 

5. PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2022/23 

5.1 Members noted the covering report which outlined the proposed changes to 
the Pay Policy Statement, with some additional context setting information.

5.2 Concern was raised that Local Government employees were currently 
lagging behind in terms of pay increase compared to others, this was 
particularly concerning considering the economic landscape at the moment. 
It was questioned what the Council’s view was on this and whether there 
was any plan to lobbying on behalf of staff to help close the gap.

5.3 It was accepted that Local Government would always be under pressure on 
staff wages due to its set budget, there was balance to be struck between 
fair salary ranges that rewarded existing staff and attracted new staff, but 
also did not lead to having to make cuts to services. In addition, salary 
increases were negotiated through the Local Government Association, not 
by individual councils so it was out of the council’s direct control.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

5.4 There was a wider conversation however of the challenges GCC faced in 
filling staff vacancies, which was no longer being seen just within the 
traditional areas of social care and highways. Officers were looking to carry 
out a piece of work on repackaging the ‘Gloucestershire offer’ for employees 
and looking at other things that could attract staff such as career 
development, wellbeing at work etc. and how this could be better promoted 
e.g., using social media. 

5.5 A member asked how many staff were currently outside IR35 payroll, noting 
this was a particularly expensive way of employing staff. It was confirmed 
that there only a handful of staff remained outside IR35, it was only 
employees that were hired on an interim/agency basis, it could not be 
anyone doing a day job on behalf of GCC.

5.6 It was highlighted that the 1.75% agreed for this financial year would be 
backdated when it was paid in April. The national discussions were now 
straight into starting negotiation on the 2022-23 settlement. There would be 
conversations internally on whether national pay arrangements could be 
used in a more creative way to target areas particularly difficult to recruit to 
but stressed that any changes would need to remain within budget and inline 
with national discussions.

CHAIR

Meeting concluded at 10:20

Page 2



 

Page 1 

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE REPORT 

Committee Date 10 May 2022 

Officer 
Mandy Quayle, Director of Digital and People Services on behalf of 

Peter Bungard, Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service. 

Purpose of  

Report To summarise a proposed change to the Council’s senior 

management structure; approve consequent decisions and note the 

process for appointing the Director of Public Health. 

Recommendations The committee agrees that: 

• The Deputy Director of Public Health role is deleted and 

replaced with the Director of Public Health which will incorporate 

the statutory requirements of the role (currently held by the 

Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public Health).  

• The single candidate for the Director of Public Health role will 

be the existing GCC employee who currently holds the Deputy 

Director of Public Health post.  

• The job title of the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and 

Public Health will change to the Executive Director of Adult 

Social Care, Wellbeing and Communities. 

The committee notes the following: 

• Subject to the above recommendations being agreed, an 

Appointments Sub-Committee will be held on 25 May 2022 to 

assess and potentially appoint the Director of Public Health.  

Resource  

Implications 

The decisions set out in the previous proposal of 14 September 2020 to 

create the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public Health 

resulted in an overall saving of £90,000.  Redesignating the current 

Deputy Director as a Director role will cost not more than £10,000 in the 

first year rising to a maximum of an additional £18,000 including on-costs 

at the top of the grade.   

 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



 

Page 2 

 

MAIN REPORT CONTENTS 

1. Purpose of Report 

The purpose of this report is to update members on a further phase of changes to 

the Council’s senior management structure; approve the consequent decisions 

and to agree the process of appointing to the newly created position.  

2. Background 

The Appointment Committee met on 14 September 2020 and agreed to combine 

the Adult Social Care and Public health services and create the position of 

Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public Health.  Sarah Scott was 

appointed to that position with effect from 1 January 2021.  Since that time, there 

have been changes to the Directorate’s senior team primarily due the age profile 

of the officers.  Having now benefited from a year in post, the Executive Director 

is taking the opportunity to review the structure of the senior team moving 

forwards. 

3. Adult Social Care and Public Health Senior Management Structure  

One year into the new model, the approach is working well in line with the intended 

benefits set out in the paper presented to the Appointments Committee in 

September 2020 including: 

• Joining up the work around health inequalities, public health principles and 

the wellbeing and support of the most vulnerable adults in our county.   

• Increasing the focus on the development of healthy places and therefore 

aiming to increase years of healthy life in order to reduce dependency on 

social care services. 

• Enabling greater focus on the role of the council in the evolution of the 

Integrated Care System. 

Given recent white papers in relation to Adult Social Care including the introduction 

of the care cap and the reintroduction of an inspection regime for Adult Social 

Care, the Executive Director commissioned a self-assessment of our services and 

readiness for new ways of working.  The findings of this assessment and learning 

from a year in post has clarified areas of priority and focus for the senior team in 

Adult Social Care and Public Health.  This work is still being developed and the 

following structure is proposed. 

 

 

 

Page 4



 

Page 3 

 

Executive Director
Adult Social Care, Wellbeing & Communities

Director
Adult Social Care

Operations

Director
Quality, Performance 

and Strategy

Director
Public Health

Joint Director
Integrated 

Commissioning

 

As shown in the diagram, it is proposed to delete the post of Deputy Director Public 

Health and re-establish the Director of Public Health (DPH) as a separate post 

reporting into the Executive Director.  This will allow the Executive Director to 

provide strategic oversight for the entire Adult Social Care and Public Health 

agenda in preparation for a period of significant change and continue in a position 

of influence across the wider health and care system whilst the DPH oversees the 

delivery of the specific public health responsibilities.  The DPH role would carry the 

statutory responsibilities of the position and therefore is a matter for Appointments 

Committee. 

Our current Deputy Director of Public Health has demonstrated her significant skill 

and ability to contribute to the work of the county council and wider public service 

during the covid pandemic. Furthermore, the age of profile of our senior team will 

continue to result in turnover in corporate leadership over the next two years and 

there is organisational benefit to supporting internal progression to enable the 

retention of organisation learning and stability.  In addition to these other factors, 

there is good evidence of a shortage of experienced candidates for leadership 

roles in local government generally and in public health explicitly.   

4. Appointment of the Director of Public Health 

Should the Appointments Committee agree to this approach, it is proposed that 

there will be an internal selection process.  The internal selection is justified as a 

reasonable alternative to redundancy, given the proposed deletion of the Deputy 

Director of Public Health post.  The appointment of any Director of Public Health 

requires an appointment advisory committee attended by the Faculty of Public 

Health which would take place first.  The final stage of the process would then be 

an Appointments Sub-Committee held on 25 May 2022 to interview the candidate 

and potentially appoint to the post. 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Director of Public Health

